
 
CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA                           CITY COUNCIL MEETING & 
 CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS                            PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA 

 

  

March 6, 2018   9:00 am 
 

1. Call to Order by Mayor Jonathan McCollar 
 

2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance by Councilman Travis Chance 
 

3. Recognitions/Public Presentations  
A) Presentation of Employee of the Quarter Award 
B) Recognition of the Finance Department for receiving the Government Finance 

Officers Association (GFOA) Distinguished Budget Award for the City of 
Statesboro's FY2018 Budget. 
 

4. Public Comments (Agenda Item): 
 

5. Consideration of a Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 
A) Approval of Minutes 

a) 02-20-2018 Council Minutes 
 

B) Consideration of a Motion to Adopt Resolution 2018-11: A Resolution authorizing 
the waiver of any payment in lieu of taxes (PILOT) by the Statesboro Housing 
Authority to the City of Statesboro for the 2017 tax year in the amount of $18,915.32. 
 

6. Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve: APPLICATION # DSDA 
18-03-001: AgSouth Farm Credit requests the demolition of two structures addressed 4 
East Vine Street, which are located within the boundaries of the Downtown District. 
Article XXX Section 3003 of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance requires a finding of 
necessity for the demolition of structures deemed worthy of preservation by City Council 
(Tax Parcel S28 000071 000). 
 

7. Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve: APPLICATION # DSDA 
18-03-001: The Downtown Statesboro Development Authority requests the demolition of 
a single-family structure addressed 14 West Inman Street, which is located within the 
boundaries of the Downtown District. Article XXX Section 3003 of the Statesboro 
Zoning Ordinance requires a finding of necessity for the demolition of structures deemed 
worthy of preservation by City Council (Tax Parcel S19 000043 000). 

 
8. Consideration of a motion to approve the Statesboro Tree Board to place benches in 

Edgewood Park (aka Rockwell Park) in memory of the following former Statesboro Tree 
Board members: Mrs. Rachael Smith, Mrs. Runette Davis and Dr. John Karrh. 
 

9. Consideration of a motion to approve the Bulloch Council of Garden Clubs to donate a 
bench to be placed in Edgewood Park (aka Rockwell Park). 
 



 
 

10. Consideration of a Motion to appoint a Fire Chief Tim Grams as a board member to the 
Statesboro Convention Visitors Bureau (SCVB). 

 
11. Other Business from City Council 

 
12. City Managers Comments 

 
13. Public Comments (General) 

 
14. Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 



 
 

CITY OF STATESBORO 
Council Minutes 

February 20, 2018 

 
A regular meeting of the Statesboro City Council was held on February 20, 2018 at 5:30p.m. in 
the Council Chambers at City Hall. Present were Mayor Jonathan McCollar, Council Members: 
Phil Boyum, Sam Lee Jones, Jeff Yawn, John Riggs and Travis Chance.  Also present were City 
Manager Randy Wetmore, Deputy City Manager Robert Cheshire, City Clerk Sue Starling and 
City Attorney Cain Smith.      
The Meeting was called to Order by Mayor Jonathan McCollar. 
 
The Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mayor Pro Tem John Riggs 
 
 Public Comments (Agenda Item): None 
 
Consideration of a Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 

A) Approval of Minutes 
a) 02-06-2018 Council Minutes 
b) 02-06-2018 Executive Session Minutes 

 
B) Consideration of a Motion to Approve Resolution 2018-06:  A Resolution 

authorizing the closing of the bank account for the 2013 Community 
Development block grant. 

 
C) Consideration of a Motion to Approve Resolution 2018-07:  A Resolution 

authorizing the opening of a separate bank account for federal confiscated 
funds. 

   
D) Consideration of a Motion to Approve Resolution 2018-08:  A Resolution 

authorizing the opening of a separate bank account for state confiscated funds. 
 

E) Consideration of a Motion to Approve Resolution 2018-09:  A Resolution 
authorizing the closing of the bank account for America’s Best Communities 
(ABC) grant. 

 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Jones to approve the consent 
agenda in its entirety. Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, and Chance voted in favor of the 
motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 
 

 
 
 
 



 
 

 
Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve Alcohol License Application: 

A) ZMC Hotels, LLC as agent for Zenith Asset Company II,LLC 
DBA-Springfield Suites by Marriott 

             Manager: Melissa McDuffie 
             105 Springfield Drive 
              Statesboro Ga 30458 

B) Walgreen Co. 
DBA Rite Aid #11805 
Manager: Jessica Lumpkin 
556 Northside Dr. East 
Statesboro, Ga. 30458 

C) Bulloch Mexican Foods, LLC 
DBA-El Jalapeno 
Manager Rick Robins 
711 South Main St. 
Statesboro, Ga. 30458 

 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Riggs to open the public hearing 
for item 5A, 5B and 5C. Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, and Chance voted in favor of 
the motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 
No one spoke for or against the requests 
Councilman Riggs made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to close the public hearing 
for item 5A, 5B and 5C. Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, and Chance voted in favor of 
the motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 
 
Councilman Riggs made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to approve the alcohol 
application for Springfield Suites by Marriott. Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, and 
Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 
 
Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to approve the alcohol 
application for Walgren Co. DBA: Rite Aid. Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, and 
Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 
 
Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Councilman Riggs to approve the alcohol 
application for Bulloch Mexican Foods, DBA El Jalapeno. Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn, 
Riggs, and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 
 
Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve: APPLICATION # RZ 18-02-
01: Lindsay Martin requests a zoning map amendment of 58.97 acres of property addressed 
Highway 301 North from the R10 (Single-Family Residential) zoning district to the R4 (High 
Density Residential District) zoning district to permit the construction of single-family and 
multi-family dwelling units (Tax Parcel MS80 000013 000). 
 
No motion was made to open the public hearing. 



 
 

Lindsey Martin spoke in favor of the request. Director of Planning and Zoning Frank Neal stated 
that a letter was received from a citizen who was against the request. The name of the citizen was 
not stated on record. 
Councilman Riggs made a motion, seconded by Councilman Jones to close the public hearing. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion 
carried by a 5-0 vote. 
Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to approve 
APPLICATION # RZ 18-02-01: Lindsay Martin requests a zoning map amendment of 58.97 
acres of property addressed Highway 301 North from the R10 (Single-Family Residential) 
zoning district to the R4 (High Density Residential District) zoning district to permit the 
construction of single-family and multi-family dwelling units (Tax Parcel MS80 000013 000). 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion 
carried by a 5-0 vote. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to Approve Resolution 2018-10: A Resolution to adopt revisions 
to the Personnel Policy and Procedures (Employee Handbook), and that any 
ordinances, resolutions, motions or informal policies conflict with any provision of these 
revisions are hereby repealed to the extent of any such conflict.  
 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Riggs to approve Resolution 2018-
10: A Resolution to adopt revisions to the Personnel Policy and Procedures (Employee 
Handbook), and that any ordinances, resolutions, motions or informal policies conflict with any 
provision of these revisions are hereby repealed to the extent of any such conflict. Councilman 
Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 
5-0 vote. 
 
Other Business from City Council 
 
Councilman Boyum asked for a sidewalk ordinance to be presented to Council in the upcoming 
months. He also commented on the possibility of incentives to promote subdivisions within the 
City. 

 
City Managers Comments 
 
Director of Finance Cindy West asked Council to consider a date for the budget retreat. The 
available dates would be April 6th or April 12th. The decision will be voted on at the next Council 
meeting. 
Director of utilities Steve Hotchkiss updated Council on the emergency purchase of an aerator 
for the waste water plant. 
 
Public Comments (General): None 
 
Mayor McCollar thanked Director of Human Resource Jeff Grant for his years of service, as he 
leaves the employment of the City. 
Mayor McCollar also spoke of the shooting at the school in Florida. 
 
 



 
 

Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 
 
Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to adjourn the meeting. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion 
carried by a 5-0 vote. 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:00 pm. 
 



 

 

CITY OF STATESBORO 

 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 
STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 

Jonathan McCollar, Mayor 
Randy Wetmore, City Manager 

Robert Cheshire, Deputy City Manager 
Sue Starling, City Clerk 

I. Cain Smith, City Attorney 

COUNCIL 
Phillip A. Boyum 
Sam Lee Jones 
Jeff B. Yawn 
John C. Riggs 
Travis L. Chance 

Georgia Municipal Association City of Excellence  
Telephone:  (912) 764-5468 • Fax: (912) 764-4691 • email: cityhall@statesboroga.net 

To: City Manager, Randy Wetmore, Mayor Jonathan McCollar 
 
 
From: Sue Starling, City Clerk 
 
 
Date: 02-26-2018 
 
 
RE: March 6, 2018 City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
Policy Issue: N/A 
 
 
Recommendation: N/A 
 
 
Background: This is a reoccurring event and has been waived for years by 
Mayor and Council 
 
 
Budget Impact: taxes would be waived in the amount of $18,915.32 for 2016 on 
Butler Homes, Groover Homes, Cone Homes and Braswell Homes. These low 
income housing projects are managed by the Statesboro Housing Authority. 
 
 
Council Person and District: Butler Homes- Councilman Sam Lee Jones, District 2 
Groover Homes, Cone Homes and Braswell Homes-Councilman Phil Boyum- 
District 1 
 
Attachments: Resolution 2018-11 attached 
 
 
 
 



 
 
RESOLUTION 2018-11: A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE WAIVER OF ANY 
PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES (PILOT) BY THE STATESBORO HOUSING AUTHORITY 
TO THE CITY OF STATESBORO FOR THE 2017 TAX YEAR 
 
 
  THAT WHEREAS, the City of Statesboro has previously established the Statesboro 
Housing Authority to provide subsidized rental housing to low- and moderate-income citizens; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Statesboro Housing Authority is exempt from property taxes but is 
required to make a payment in lieu of taxes  (PILOT) based upon the amount of rental income 
during the fiscal year; and 
 

WHEREAS, in previous years the Mayor and City Council have annually waived the 
requirement to make this payment in lieu of taxes in order for the Housing Authority to utilize 
that money on  capital improvements and/or maintenance on its facilities; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Statesboro Housing Authority has asked that the payment in lieu of taxes 
be waived again for the 2017 tax year, with the $18,915.32 to be used for maintenance on the 
facilities; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Statesboro Housing Authority has provided evidence that prior PILOT 
funds that were waived have been used for maintenance on the facilities; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Statesboro Housing Authority and the City of Statesboro enjoy an 
excellent working relationship, and the Mayor and City Council wish to assist the Authority in its 
maintenance efforts; 
 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Statesboro, Georgia as follows: 

 
Section 1.  That the  “Payment in Lieu of Taxes” in the amount of $18,915.32 due to the 

City for the 2017 Tax Year from the Statesboro Housing Authority is hereby waived so that the 
funds can be used for additional maintenance on the Authority’s facilities. 
 

  Section 2.  That this Resolution shall be and remain in full force and effect from and after 
its date of adoption. 
 

Passed and adopted this ____ day of March, 2018. 
 
CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA 
 
                                                                                                   BY: ________________________ 
                                                                                                             Jonathan McCollar, Mayor 
 
                                                                                               
                                                                                               ATTEST: ______________________ 
                                                                                                                 Sue Starling, City Clerk 







 
 
 

CITY OF  STATESBORO 

 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 • STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 

Jonathan M. McCollar, Mayor 

Randy Wetmore, City Manager 

Robert Cheshire, Deputy City Manager 

Sue Starling, City Clerk 

I. Cain Smith, City Attorney 

COUNCIL 

Phil Boyum, District 1 

Sam Jones, District 2 

Jeff Yawn, District 3 

John Riggs, District 4 

Travis L. Chance, District 5 

 

To: Randy Wetmore, City Manager and Sue Starling, City Clerk 

 

From: Candra Teshome, Planning & Development Specialist 

 

Date: February 27, 2018 

 

RE: March 6, 2018 City Council Agenda Items 

 

Policy Issue: Statesboro Zoning Ordinance: Demolition Requests 

 

Recommendation: Staff does not have a recommendation for the demolition 

requested by application DSDA 18-03-001.  

 

Background: AgSouth Farm Credit requests the demolition of two structures 

addressed 4 East Vine Street, which are located within the boundaries of the 

Downtown District. Article XXX Section 3003 of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance 

requires a finding of necessity for the demolition of structures deemed worthy of 

preservation by City Council (Tax Parcel S28 000071 000). 

 

Budget Impact: None 

 

Council Person and District: District 2 (Sam Jones) 

 

Attachments: Development Services Report DSDA 18-03-001 



 
 

City of Statesboro-Department of Planning and Development 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
P.O. Box 348    (912) 764-0630 

Statesboro, Georgia 30458  (912) 764-0664 (Fax) 

 

DSDA 18-03-001 

DEMOLITION REQUEST 

4 EAST VINE STREET 

LOCATION: 4 East Vine Street 

 

REQUEST: 

Request for a finding of necessity for the 

demolition of two (2) structures zoned CBD 

(Commercial Business District) within the 

Downtown Statesboro Development Authority 

Design Standards District.  

APPLICANT: Agsouth Farm Credit 

OWNER(S): Agsouth Farm Credit ACA 

ACRES: .28 acres  

PARCEL TAX  

MAP #: 
S28 000071 000 

COUNCIL        

DISTRICT:            
District 2 (Sam Jones) 

   

PROPOSAL: 

The applicant would like to demolish two (2) structures addressed 4 East Vine Street (see Exhibit D—Demolition 

Phase II Site Plan) and contains two (2) structures. The property lies within the boundaries of the Downtown Statesboro 
Development Authority, and in September 2015, City Council adopted Article XXX: Design Standards: Downtown 
District of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance, which requires a finding of necessity for proposed demolitions where the 
structure does not exceed 35 percent in structural damage and meets one of the criteria contained in Section 3003(D) 
(See Exhibit A–Location Map, Exhibit B—Aerial View of Subject Site and Exhibit C–Photos of Subject Site).  

SURROUNDING ZONING/LAND USES: 

 ZONING: LAND USE: 

NORTH: CBD (Central Business District) Personal service facilities 

SOUTH: CBD (Central Business District) Personal service facilities 

EAST: CBD (Central Business District) Personal service facilities 

WEST CBD (Central Business District) Personal service facilities 

 

The subject site is adjacent to AgSouth Farm Credit’s existing offices and is a contributing portion of the company’s 
proposed expansion. Properties to the north, south, east and west are predominantly personal service facilities, 
including Synovus/Sea Island Bank.   



DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT  Page 2 of 15 

 

Case # RZ 15-03-04 
April 29, 2015 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # DSDA 18-03-001 
February 19, 2018 
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 

The subject site lies within the “Urban Core/Downtown” character area as identified by the City of Statesboro 2014 
Future Development Map (See EXHIBIT E—2014 Future Development Map) within the City of Statesboro Updated 
2014 Comprehensive Plan – which calls for the protection of “historic buildings from demolition or inappropriate 

restoration” while encouraging the “street-level uses should be reserved for retail, entertainment, or similar high-
activity uses.”  
 
Vision:  

Downtown is the historic core of the city and should remain the activity and cultural hub of the region. In the Urban 
Core, traditional development patterns of buildings along the sidewalk and a lively streetscape should be respected 
and promoted. Historic buildings should be protected from demolition or inappropriate restoration which can degrade 
the architectural details of the structures. Additional residential opportunities, especially in the form of lofts or other 
residential over retail, should be promoted. Street-level uses should be reserved for retail, entertainment, or similar 
high activity uses. 
 

Appropriate Land Uses 

 Neighborhood-scale retail and commercial, especially niche market stores which serve as a destination  

 Arts and entertainment venues  

 Civic uses  

 Office  

 Neighborhood services 

 Range of housing styles & price points 

 Multifamily Residential  

 Loft, mixed use, and urban residential, including small lot single-family residential along secondary streets  

 Multi-story buildings with retail on the street and office/residential above  

 Government offices & services 
 

Suggested Development & Implementation Strategies 

 Historic structures should be preserved or adaptively reused wherever possible.  

 Create local historic districts. 

 Economic development strategies should continue to nurture thriving commercial activity. 

 New development should respect historic context of building mass, height and setbacks. 

 New developments that contain a mix of residential, commercial and/or community facilities at small enough 
scale and proximity to encourage walking between destinations should be encouraged. 

 Encourage mixed-use infill and redevelopment. Uses should typically transition across the rear of properties 
instead of across the street to soften the transition and maintain appropriate streetscapes. 

Statesboro Updated 2015 Comprehensive Plan, Community Agenda page 14. 

STATESBORO DOWNTOWN MASTER PLAN: 

The 2011 Statesboro Downtown Master Plan Redevelopment Initiatives Locational Guidance land use map places the 
parcel in Zone 4: Mixed Use (including loft housing), Parks and Attractions. The plan establishes this zone of primary 
importance and calls for emphasis on catalyst and specialty projects (See Exhibit F—Locational Guidance/Zone 

Implementation Table). 

COMMUNITY FACILITIES AND TRANSPORTATION: 

The subject properties are currently serviced by city utilities, sanitation, and public safety.  No significant impact is 
expected on community facilities or services as a result of this request.  

ENVIRONMENTAL: 

The subject properties do not contain wetlands and are not located in a special flood hazard area. There is no expected 
environmental impact associated with this request. Any environmental issues associated with the proper demolition of 
the structures and/or removal and disposal of debris are the responsibility of the applicant. 

ANALYSIS: 

Given that Bulloch County Tax Records indicate that the structure is greater than fifty (50) years in age, staff is not 
authorized to administratively approve a demolition permit (See Exhibit G—Bulloch County Tax Assessor Parcel 



DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT  Page 3 of 15 

 

Case # RZ 15-03-04 
April 29, 2015 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # DSDA 18-03-001 
February 19, 2018 
 

Information Card).  Rather, council must determine whether the structures are considered to be a “Historical Building” 

as defined by Article XXX of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance, and if so, may authorize a demolition only upon a 
showing of necessity.  In order to designate the structure as a “Historical Building” meriting preservation, Council 
must find the building to be greater than fifty years in age and that at least one of the following criteria or the criteria of 
the National Register of Historic Places are met.  Ordinance considerations, and relevant known factors, are as 
follows:  

(1) The structure is an outstanding example representative of its era: 

a. See EXHIBIT C—Photos of Subject Site 

(2) The structure is one of few remaining examples of a past architectural style: 

There is no indication that the structure is one of few remaining examples of a past architectural style.  

(3) The property or structure place or structure is associated with an event or person of historic or 
cultural significance to the City of Statesboro, Bulloch County, the State of Georgia, or the region: 

No evidence of association with an event or person of historic or cultural significance to the City of 
Statesboro, Bulloch County, Georgia or the region was found.  

(4) The property or structure is a site of natural or aesthetic interest that is continuing to contribute to 
the cultural or historical development and heritage of the City of Statesboro, Bulloch County, the 
State of Georgia, or the region; 

The subject property is not a site of natural or aesthetic interest that contributes to the cultural or historical 
development of the City of Statesboro.  

(5) It is within an existing historic district or is listed with the National Register of Historic Places; or 

The parcel lies adjacent to the boundary of the East Vine Warehouse and Depot District. The applicant has 
already demolished three (3) contributing buildings to the district. In addition, the structures are adjacent to 
the United States Post Office—Statesboro (as listed on the National Register of Historic Places), which was 
listed September 6, 1989 (See Exhibit H—Historic Resources of Statesboro).  

Generally, the Department of Interior evaluates the following criteria in consideration of whether a structure is 
historical in significance and therefore possibly deemed worthy of preservation: 

(1) Age  

The structure exceeds 50 years of age (See Exhibit G—Bulloch County Tax Assessor Parcel Information 
Card). 

(2) Integrity 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff does not have a recommendation regarding the requested demolition. 

 

 

 

 

  



DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT  Page 4 of 15 

 

Case # RZ 15-03-04 
April 29, 2015 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # DSDA 18-03-001 
February 19, 2018 
 

EXHIBIT A: LOCATION MAP 

 

 

 

 



DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT  Page 5 of 15 

 

Case # RZ 15-03-04 
April 29, 2015 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # DSDA 18-03-001 
February 19, 2018 
 

EXHIBIT B: PHOTOS OF SUBJECT SITE  

Picture 1: Subject Site Aerial View 

 

  



DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT  Page 6 of 15 

 

Case # RZ 15-03-04 
April 29, 2015 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # DSDA 18-03-001 
February 19, 2018 
 

EXHIBIT C: PHOTOS OF SUBJECT SITE  

Picture 2: Subject site depicting front elevation along East Vine Street facing west 

 

 

Picture 3: Subject site depicting front elevation along East Vine Street facing east 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT  Page 7 of 15 

 

Case # RZ 15-03-04 
April 29, 2015 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # DSDA 18-03-001 
February 19, 2018 
 

EXHIBIT C: PHOTOS OF SUBJECT SITE (CONT.) 

Picture 4: Subject site depicting rear elevation in Parking Lot facing east 

 

 

Picture 5: Subject site depicting side elevation adjacent to abandoned alley facing west 

 
 

 

 

 

 



DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT  Page 8 of 15 

 

Case # RZ 15-03-04 
April 29, 2015 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # DSDA 18-03-001 
February 19, 2018 
 

EXHIBIT C: PHOTOS OF SUBJECT SITE (CONT.) 

Picture 6: Subject site depicting front elevation and adjacent new AgSouth Construction along East Vine Street 

facing east 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT  Page 9 of 15 

 

Case # RZ 15-03-04 
April 29, 2015 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # DSDA 18-03-001 
February 19, 2018 
 

EXHIBIT D: DEMOLITION PHASE II SITE PLAN 

 

 

 

 

 



DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT  Page 10 of 15 

 

Case # RZ 15-03-04 
April 29, 2015 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # DSDA 18-03-001 
February 19, 2018 
 

EXHIBIT E: CITY OF STATESBORO 2014 FUTURE DEVELOPMENT MAP 

  



DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT  Page 11 of 15 

 

Case # RZ 15-03-04 
April 29, 2015 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # DSDA 18-03-001 
February 19, 2018 
 

EXHIBIT F: LOCATIONAL GUIDANCE/ZONING IMPLEMENTATION MAP AND TABLE 

 

  



DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT  Page 12 of 15 

 

Case # RZ 15-03-04 
April 29, 2015 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # DSDA 18-03-001 
February 19, 2018 
 

EXHIBIT F: LOCATIONAL GUIDANCE/ZONING IMPLEMENTATION MAP AND TABLE (CONT) 

 

  



DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT  Page 13 of 15 

 

Case # RZ 15-03-04 
April 29, 2015 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # DSDA 18-03-001 
February 19, 2018 
 

EXHIBIT G: BULLOCH COUNTY TAX ASSESSOR PARCEL INFORMATION CARD 

   



DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT  Page 14 of 15 

 

Case # RZ 15-03-04 
April 29, 2015 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # DSDA 18-03-001 
February 19, 2018 
 

EXHIBIT G: BULLOCH COUNTY TAX ASSESSOR PARCEL INFORMATION CARD (CONT)

 

 



DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT  Page 15 of 15 

 

Case # RZ 15-03-04 
April 29, 2015 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # DSDA 18-03-001 
February 19, 2018 
 

EXHIBIT H: HISTORIC RESOURCES OF STATESBORO MAP

 

 



 
 
 

CITY OF  STATESBORO 

 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 • STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 

Jonathan M. McCollar, Mayor 

Randy Wetmore, City Manager 

Robert Cheshire, Deputy City Manager 

Sue Starling, City Clerk 

I. Cain Smith, City Attorney 

COUNCIL 

Phil Boyum, District 1 

Sam Jones, District 2 

Jeff Yawn, District 3 

John Riggs, District 4 

Travis L. Chance, District 5 

 

To: Randy Wetmore, City Manager and Sue Starling, City Clerk 

 

From: Candra Teshome, Planning & Development Specialist 

 

Date: February 27, 2018 

 

RE: March 6, 2018 City Council Agenda Items 

 

Policy Issue: Statesboro Zoning Ordinance: Demolition Requests 

 

Recommendation: Staff does not have a recommendation for the demolition 

requested by application DSDA 18-03-002.  

 

Background: The Downtown Statesboro Development Authority requests the 

demolition of a single-family structure addressed 14 West Inman Street, which is 

located within the boundaries of the Downtown District. Article XXX Section 3003 

of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance requires a finding of necessity for the 

demolition of structures deemed worthy of preservation by City Council (Tax 

Parcel S19 000043 000). 

 

Budget Impact: None 

 

Council Person and District: District 2 (Sam Jones) 

 

Attachments: Development Services Report DSDA 18-03-002 



 
 

City of Statesboro-Department of Planning and Development 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
P.O. Box 348    (912) 764-0630 

Statesboro, Georgia 30458  (912) 764-0664 (Fax) 

 

DSDA 18-03-002 

DEMOLITION REQUEST 

14 WEST INMAN STREET 

LOCATION: 14 West Inman Street 

 

REQUEST: 

Request for a finding of necessity for the 

demolition of one (1) structure zoned R3 

(Medium Density Multiple Family Residential 

District) within the Downtown Statesboro 

Development Authority Design Standards 

District.  

APPLICANT: Downtown Statesboro Development Authority 

OWNER(S): Downtown Statesboro Development Authority 

ACRES: .16 acres  

PARCEL TAX  

MAP #: 
S19 000043 000 

COUNCIL        

DISTRICT:            
District 2 (Sam Jones) 

   

PROPOSAL: 

The applicant would like to demolish one (1) structure addressed 14 West Inman Street. The property lies within the 
boundaries of the Downtown Statesboro Development Authority, and in September 2015, City Council adopted Article 
XXX: Design Standards: Downtown District of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance, which requires a finding of necessity 
for proposed demolitions where the structure does not exceed 35 percent in structural damage and meets one of the 
criteria contained in Section 3003(D) (See Exhibit A–Location Map, Exhibit B—Photos of Subject Site).  

SURROUNDING ZONING/LAND USES: 

 ZONING: LAND USE: 

NORTH: R4 (High Density Residential District) Single-family dwelling unit 

SOUTH: R3 (Medium Density Multiple Family 
Residential District) 

Assisted living facility 

EAST: HOC (Highway Oriented Commercial) Single-family dwelling unit 

WEST HOC (Highway Oriented Commercial) Multi-family dwelling units 

 

Properties to the north, south, east and west are predominantly single-family and multi-family dwelling units. 
Surrounding uses include Brown's Healthcare and Meineke Car Care Center.  



DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT  Page 2 of 13 

 

Case # RZ 15-03-04 

April 29, 2015 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # DSDA 18-03-002 
February 21, 2018 
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 

The subject site lies within the “Urban Core/Downtown” character area as identified by the City of Statesboro 2014 
Future Development Map (See EXHIBIT C—2014 Future Development Map) within the City of Statesboro Updated 
2014 Comprehensive Plan – which calls for the protection of “historic buildings from demolition or inappropriate 
restoration” while encouraging the “street-level uses should be reserved for retail, entertainment, or similar high-
activity uses.”  
 
Vision:  

Downtown is the historic core of the city and should remain the activity and cultural hub of the region. In the Urban 
Core, traditional development patterns of buildings along the sidewalk and a lively streetscape should be respected 
and promoted. Historic buildings should be protected from demolition or inappropriate restoration which can degrade 
the architectural details of the structures. Additional residential opportunities, especially in the form of lofts or other 
residential over retail, should be promoted. Street-level uses should be reserved for retail, entertainment, or similar 
high activity uses. 
 

Appropriate Land Uses 

 Neighborhood-scale retail and commercial, especially niche market stores which serve as a destination  

 Arts and entertainment venues  

 Civic uses  

 Office  

 Neighborhood services 

 Range of housing styles & price points 

 Multifamily Residential  

 Loft, mixed use, and urban residential, including small lot single-family residential along secondary streets  

 Multi-story buildings with retail on the street and office/residential above  

 Government offices & services 
 

Suggested Development & Implementation Strategies 

 Historic structures should be preserved or adaptively reused wherever possible.  

 Create local historic districts. 

 Economic development strategies should continue to nurture thriving commercial activity. 

 New development should respect historic context of building mass, height and setbacks. 

 New developments that contain a mix of residential, commercial and/or community facilities at small enough 
scale and proximity to encourage walking between destinations should be encouraged. 

 Encourage mixed-use infill and redevelopment. Uses should typically transition across the rear of properties 
instead of across the street to soften the transition and maintain appropriate streetscapes. 

Statesboro Updated 2015 Comprehensive Plan, Community Agenda page 14. 

STATESBORO DOWNTOWN MASTER PLAN: 

The 2011 Statesboro Downtown Master Plan Redevelopment Initiatives Locational Guidance land use map places the 
parcel in Zone 8: Commercial and Mixed Use (including loft housing). The plan establishes this zone of primary 
importance and calls for emphasis on pedestrian-scaled neighborhood and community commercial uses (See Exhibit 
D—Locational Guidance/Zone Implementation Table). 

COMMUNITY FACILITIES AND TRANSPORTATION: 

The subject properties are currently serviced by city utilities, sanitation, and public safety.  No significant impact is 
expected on community facilities or services as a result of this request.  

ENVIRONMENTAL: 

The subject property does not contain wetlands and are not located in a special flood hazard area. There is no 
expected environmental impact associated with this request. Any environmental issues associated with the proper 
demolition of the structures and/or removal and disposal of debris are the responsibility of the applicant. 

ANALYSIS: 

Given that Bulloch County Tax Records indicate that the structure is greater than fifty (50) years in age, staff is not 
authorized to administratively approve a demolition permit (See Exhibit E—Bulloch County Tax Assessor Parcel 



DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT  Page 3 of 13 

 

Case # RZ 15-03-04 

April 29, 2015 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # DSDA 18-03-002 
February 21, 2018 
 

Information Card).  Rather, council must determine whether the structures are considered to be a “Historical Building” 
as defined by Article XXX of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance, and if so, may authorize a demolition only upon a 
showing of necessity.  In order to designate the structure as a “Historical Building” meriting preservation, Council 
must find the building to be greater than fifty years in age and that at least one of the following criteria or the criteria of 
the National Register of Historic Places are met.  Ordinance considerations, and relevant known factors, are as 
follows:  

(1) The structure is an outstanding example representative of its era: 

a. See EXHIBIT B—Photos of Subject Site 

(2) The structure is one of few remaining examples of a past architectural style: 

There is no indication that the structure is one of few remaining examples of a past architectural style.  

(3) The property or structure place or structure is associated with an event or person of historic or 
cultural significance to the City of Statesboro, Bulloch County, the State of Georgia, or the region: 

No evidence of association with an event or person of historic or cultural significance to the City of 
Statesboro, Bulloch County, Georgia or the region was found.  

(4) The property or structure is a site of natural or aesthetic interest that is continuing to contribute to 
the cultural or historical development and heritage of the City of Statesboro, Bulloch County, the 
State of Georgia, or the region; 

The subject property is not a site of natural or aesthetic interest that contributes to the cultural or historical 
development of the City of Statesboro.  

(5) It is within an existing historic district or is listed with the National Register of Historic Places; or 

The property is not within an existing historic district and is not listed with the National Register of Historic 
Places. 

Generally, the Department of Interior evaluates the following criteria in consideration of whether a structure is 
historical in significance and therefore possibly deemed worthy of preservation: 

(1) Age  

The structure exceeds 50 years of age (See Exhibit E—Bulloch County Tax Assessor Parcel Information 
Card). 

(2) Integrity 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff does not have a recommendation regarding the requested demolition. 

 

 

 

 

  



DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT  Page 4 of 13 

 

Case # RZ 15-03-04 

April 29, 2015 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # DSDA 18-03-002 
February 21, 2018 
 

EXHIBIT A: LOCATION MAP 

 

 

 

 



DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT  Page 5 of 13 

 

Case # RZ 15-03-04 

April 29, 2015 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # DSDA 18-03-002 
February 21, 2018 
 

EXHIBIT B: PHOTOS OF SUBJECT SITE  

Picture 1: Subject Site Aerial View 

 

  



DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT  Page 6 of 13 

 

Case # RZ 15-03-04 

April 29, 2015 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # DSDA 18-03-002 
February 21, 2018 
 

EXHIBIT B: PHOTOS OF SUBJECT SITE (CONT.) 

Picture 2: Subject site depicting front elevation along West Inman Street facing South 

 

 

Picture 3: Subject site depicting side elevation along South Walnut Street facing west 

 

 
 

 



DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT  Page 7 of 13 

 

Case # RZ 15-03-04 

April 29, 2015 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # DSDA 18-03-002 
February 21, 2018 
 

EXHIBIT B: PHOTOS OF SUBJECT SITE (CONT.) 

Picture 4: Subject site depicting rear and side elevations  

 

 

Picture 5: Subject site depicting side elevation  

 
 

 

 

 

 



DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT  Page 8 of 13 

 

Case # RZ 15-03-04 

April 29, 2015 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # DSDA 18-03-002 
February 21, 2018 
 

EXHIBIT B: PHOTOS OF SUBJECT SITE (CONT.) 

Picture 6: Subject site depicting estimated shared property line with Hendley Properties’ development 

 

Picture 6: Adjacent Hendley Properties’ development 

 

 

 

 

 

 



DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT  Page 9 of 13 

 

Case # RZ 15-03-04 

April 29, 2015 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # DSDA 18-03-002 
February 21, 2018 
 

EXHIBIT C: CITY OF STATESBORO 2014 FUTURE DEVELOPMENT MAP 

  



DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT  Page 10 of 13 

 

Case # RZ 15-03-04 

April 29, 2015 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # DSDA 18-03-002 
February 21, 2018 
 

EXHIBIT D: LOCATIONAL GUIDANCE/ZONING IMPLEMENTATION MAP AND TABLE 

 

  



DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT  Page 11 of 13 

 

Case # RZ 15-03-04 

April 29, 2015 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # DSDA 18-03-002 
February 21, 2018 
 

EXHIBIT D: LOCATIONAL GUIDANCE/ZONING IMPLEMENTATION MAP AND TABLE (CONT) 

 

  



DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT  Page 12 of 13 

 

Case # RZ 15-03-04 

April 29, 2015 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # DSDA 18-03-002 
February 21, 2018 
 

EXHIBIT E: BULLOCH COUNTY TAX ASSESSOR PARCEL INFORMATION CARD 

   



DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT  Page 13 of 13 

 

Case # RZ 15-03-04 

April 29, 2015 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # DSDA 18-03-002 
February 21, 2018 
 

EXHIBIT E: BULLOCH COUNTY TAX ASSESSOR PARCEL INFORMATION CARD (CONT)

 

 



 
 

 
Georgia Municipal Association City of Excellence • Certified City of Ethics 

Telephone:  (912) 764-5468 • Fax: (912) 764-4691 • email: cityhall@statesboroga.net 

CITY  OF  STATESBORO 

 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 
STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 

Jan J. Moore, Mayor 
Randy Wetmore, City Manager 

Robert Cheshire, Deputy City Manager 
Sue Starling, City Clerk 

I. Cain Smith, City Attorney 

COUNCIL 
Phil Boyum, District 1 
Sam Jones, District 2 
Jeff Yawn, District 3 
John Riggs, District 4 
Travis L. Chance, District 5 

 
  
 
 
  
 
 
    
To:   Randy Wetmore, City Manager 
 
From:  Jason Boyles, Director of Public Works and Engineering 
 
Date:  February 26, 2018 
 
RE:  Placement of Benches in Edgewood (Rockwell) Park 
 
Policy Issue:  City Property 
 
Recommendation:  
Consideration of a motion to approve the Statesboro Tree Board to place 
benches in Edgewood Park (aka Rockwell Park) in memory of the following 
former Statesboro Tree Board members: Rachael Smith, Mrs. Runette Davis, and 
Dr. John Karrh and consideration of a separate motion to approve the Bulloch 
Council of Garden Clubs to donate a bench to be placed in Edgewood Park 
(aka Rockwell Park). 
 
Background:  
The Statesboro Tree Board seeks to recognize the memory and contributions of 
three former members who recently passed away.  Mrs. Rachael Smith, Mrs. 
Runette Davis, and Dr. John Karrh served several years as members of the 
Statesboro Tree Board.  To memorialize their service to our community the 
Statesboro Tree Board requests to install a bench in memory of each person in 
Edgewood (Rockwell) Park.  
 
In addition, the Bulloch Council of Garden Clubs requests to donate a bench to 
also be placed in Edgewood (Rockwell) Park.  This bench is in support of 
ongoing efforts by staff to enhance and beautify this City park. 
 
Budget Impact:   
None 

Council Person and District: 
John Riggs, District 4 
 
Attachments: 
None 


	03-06-2018 Council Agenda
	02-20-2018 Council minutes
	03-2018 Housing Auth 2018
	03-2018-11 Memo waiver of taxes for Housing Authority
	03-2018-11 Resolution housing authority taxes
	03-2018-11 Housing Auth 2018

	03-2018_PlanningPacket (1)
	03-2018 Park Bench Donation Memo

